








63.

64.

65.

overseas, specifically, at least in China. (See Exhibits 33-35.) These same Accused
Products are then being imported into the United States, sold for importation into the United
States, and/or sold after importation in the United States. (See Exhibits 32-35.) The
aforesaid acts of Chimei Innolux constitute direct infringement of at least claims 1 and 4 of
the 941 patent; at least claims 1-4, 8, 11, 12, 14, 17, and 18 of the *063 patent; at least claims
1,7-9,11, 13,14, and 16-18 of the 674 patent; at least claim 3 of the ’556patent,and at
least claims 4, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 14 of the 006 patent.

On information and belief, Chimei Innolux had notice and knowledge of its infringement of
the patents-at-issue including by virtue of discussions during licensing negotiations
conducted with Thomson Licensing LLC at least as of November 24, 2008, and through
other correspondence and communications with Thomson Licensing LL.C. Chimei Innolux
has continued to infringe, directly, contributorily, and by inducement, the patents-at-issue
after rece?iving notice of the infringement.

On information and belief, MStar had notice and knowledge of its infringement of the
patents-at-issue, at least as of July 28, 2010, through Thomson Licensing’s Complaint for
Patent Infringement, filed in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware on July 23,
2010, and served on MStar through the Clerk of the Court by mailing the complaint and
summons on July 28, 2010, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(f)(2)(C)(ii). (See Exhibit 44.)

On information and belief, Chimei Innolux and MStar each knowingly contributes to the
infringement of at least claim 1 of the *941 patent by offering to sell within the United States,
selling within the United States, or importing into the United States Accused Products used

to perform the claimed methods and knowing that the Accused Products are especially made
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66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

or adapted for infringing use and are not staple articles or commodities of commerce suitable
for substantial non-infringing use.

On information and belief, Chimei Innolux and MStar each actively and knowingly induces
the infringement, with the intent to cause infringement, of at least claim 1 of the 941 patent
by providing the Accused Products, along with directions, demonstrations, guides, manuals,
tfaining for use, and other materials that encouragé and facilitate the infringing use by
another.

A claim chart demonstrating how claims 1 and 4 of the *941 patent read onto the Acer LCD
Monitor Model S243HL Containing MStar TSUMO088GDI-LF-1 Scaler Chip is attached as
Exhibit 38. This claim chart references documentation attached as part of Exhibit 38.

A claim chart demonstrating how claims 1 and 11 of the 063 patent read onto the Hyundai
LCD Monitor Model X93W containing Chimei Innolux MT190AWO02VO0 Panel is attached
as Exhibit 39. This claim chart references documentation attached as part of Exhibit 39.

A claim chart demonstrating how claims 1 and 16 of the 674 patent read onto the
Westinghouse LCD Monitor Model L1916HW containing Chimei Innolux A190Z1 Panel is
attached as Exhibit 40. This claim chart references documentation attached as part of
Exhibit 40.

A claim chart demonstrating how claim 3 of the ’556 patent reads onto the Hyundai LCD
Monitor Model X93W containing Chimei Innolux MT190MAWO02V0 Panel is attached as
Exhibit 41. This claim chart references documentation attached as part of Exhibit 41.

A claim chart demonstrating how claims 4, 7, and 14 of the *006 patent read onto the

Hyundai LCD Monitor Model X93W containing Chimei Innolux MT190MAWO02VO0 Panel is
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72.

attached as Exhibit 42. This claim chart references documentation attached as part of
Exhibit 42.

SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF UNFAIR IMPORTATION AND SALE

On information and belief, the Chimei Innolux Accused Products are imported into the

United States, sold for importation into the United States, and/or sold after they are imported

" into the United States.

73.

74.

On information and belief, the Chimei Innolux Accused Products are manufactured,
assembled, and/or packaged and tested in China. (See Exhibits 33-35.) Chimei Innolux
Accused Products are then imported into the United States, sold for importation into the
United States, and/or sold after importation into the United States by Chimei Innolux and
others. (See Exhibits 32-35.) Chimei Innolux Accused Products, including those products
containing the MStar Accused Products, are sold in the United States under various brand
names. (See Exhibits 25, 32-35.)

Attached as Exhibits 32-35 are receipts and photographs of the following Chimei Innolux
LCD monitors bearing “China” designations: Acer LCD Monitor Model S243HL containing
MStar TSUMO88GDI-LF-1 Scaler Chip, Westinghouse LCD Monitor Model L1916HW
containing Chimei Innolux A190Z1 Panel, and Hyundai LCD Monitor Model X93W
containing Chimei Innolux MT190MAWO02VO0 Panel. Distributors in the United States sell
Chimei Innolux Accused Products. (See Exhibit 32.) The aforesaid Chimei Innolux
Accused Products bearing “China” designations have been imported and can be purchased in

the United States. (See Exhibits 32-35.)
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76.

77.

On information and belief, MStar Accused Products are imported into the United States, sold
for importation into the United States, and/or sold after they are imported into the United
States.

On information and belief, the MStar Accused Products are manufactured, assembled, and/or
packaged and tested at least in China. (See Exhibit 33.) MStar’s Accused Products are then
incorporated into Chimei Innolux Accused Products, and the Chimei Innolux Accused
products, including the MStar Accused Products, are imported into the United States and sold
after importation into the United States by Chimei Innolux and others. (See Exhibits 32-33.)
Attached as Exhibits 32 and 33 are a receipt and photographs of a Chimei Innolux LCD
monitor, specifically the Acer LCD Monitor Model S243HL bearing “China” designations
and containing MStar scaler chip Model No. TSUMO88GDI-LF-1. Distributors in the United
States sell Chimei Innolux Accused Products that contain MStar Accused Products, such as
the MStar scaler chip Model No. TSUMO088GDI-LF-1. (See Exhibits 32-33.) The MStar
Accused Products, including at least scaler chip Model No. TSUMO88GDI-LF-1, included as
components of Chimei Innolux Accused Products bearing “China” designations have been

imported and can be purchased in the United States. (See Exhibits 32-33.)

VIII. HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE ITEM NUMBERS

78.

On information and belief, the Chimei Innolux Accused Products are believed to fall within
at least the following classifications of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States:
item numbers 8528.51.00.00, 8528.59.30.50, 8528.72.08.00, 8528.72.72.50, 8529.90.53.00,
and 8542.31.00.00. The Harmonized Tariff Schedule numbers are for illustrative purposes

only, and are not intended to be restrictive of the scope of the Accused Products.
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79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

LICENSEES

Thomson Licensing has licensed the patents-at-issue to over 180 companies. A list of such
licensees is attached to this complaint as Confidential Exhibit 17.

DOMESTIC INDUSTRY
As required by Section 337(a)(2) and defined by Section 337(a)(3), a domestic industry in
the United States exists in connection with the patents-at-issue.
Thomson Licensing conducts significant domestic industry activities in the United States
relating to the patents-at-issue. These activities include Thomson Licensing LLC’s
substantial investment in the exploitation of the patents-at-issue through an extensive
program of licensing those patents for use by others.
Thomson Licensing LLC has invested substantial resources, labor, and capital in order to
exploit the patents-at-issue in the United States through such licenses. Thomson Licensing
LLC is authorized, under the terms of an agreement between it and Thomson Licensing SAS,
to grant non-exclusive licenses under all patents owned or controlled by Thomson Licensing
SAS, including the patents-at-issue, to third parties for the manufacture and sale of consumer
electronics products. That agreement is appended as Confidential Exhibit 15.
Thomson Licensing LLC conducts extensive licensing activities in the United States,
operating primarily from its facility in Princeton, New Jersey. The details of Thomson
Licensing LLC’s licensing program, including the revenues and costs related to its licensing

activities regarding the patents-at-issue, are set forth in Confidential Exhibit 43.
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84.

85.

86.

RELATED LITIGATION

A. USITC and District Court
Prior to filing this Complaint, on July 23, 2010, Thomson Licensing filed a complaint in the
U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware against Chimei Innolux Corporation, Innolux,
CMO USA, and MStar alleging infringement of the patents-at-issue. The parties filed joint
stipulations on August 16, 2010, and August 17, 2010, extending the deadline for the
defendants to answer, or otherwise respond to, Thomson Licensing’s complaint to November
15,2010.
There has been no other prior litigation involving the patents-at-issue.
The patents-at-issue are part of Thomson Licensing’s LCD monitor licensing program,
among other Thomson Licensing programs. Thomson Licensing has previously brought suit
in both the USITC and the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California on
patents from its LCD licensing program. On February 24, 2005, Thomson Licensing filed a
complaint before the USITC involving patents from its LCD licensing program against BenQ
Corp., BenQ Optronics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd., BenQ America Corp. (collectively, “BenQ”), and
AU Optronics Corp. (AUO). The USITC instituted an investigation into BenQ’s and AUO’s
infringing behavior on March 23, 2005. On March 9, 2005, Thomson Licensing filed a
complaint in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California involving the
same patents from its LCD licensing program that were asserted against BenQ and AUO in
the USITC investigation. The District Court ‘action was stayed on May 4, 2005, pending a
final determination of the USITC proceedings. After a full trial on the merits in October
2005, the USITC investigation was terminated when BenQ agreed to license Thomson

Licensing’s LCD patents and licensing and settlement agreements between the parties were
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88.

&89.

completed. The settlement and licensing agreements resolved both the USITC investigation
and the related District Court action. (See Exhibits 45-48.)

B. Reexamination
A request for an ex parte reexamination of the ’674 patent was filed with the United States
Patent and Trademark Office (Patent Office) on April 20, 2010. The request seeks
reexamination of claims 1, 2, 7-17, and 19-26. On June 3, 2010, the P‘atelrlt Office docketed
the request to an examiner in the Reexamination Group Art Unit. On August 6, 2010, the
Patent Office granted the request for ex parte reexamination.
A request for an ex parte reexamination of the 556 patent was filed with the Patent Office on
April 22, 2010. The request seeks reexamination of all thirteen claims of the *556 patent. On
May 10, 2010, the Patent Office docketed the request to an examiner in the Reexamination
Group Art Unit. On July 13, 2010, the Patent Office granted the request for ex parte
reexamination.

A request for an ex parte reexamination of the 006 patent was filed with the Patent Office on

~ June 14, 2010. The request seeks reexamination of claims 1-6 and 14 of the 006 patent. On

90.

June 30, 2010, the Patent Office docketed the request to ah examiner in the Reexamination
Group Art Unit. On July 16, 2010, the Patent Office granted the request for ex parte
reexamination.

On information and belief, there are no other reexamination proceedings relating to the

patents-at-issue.

XII. RELIEF REQUESTED

91.

WHEREFORE, by reason of the foregoing, Thomson Licensing respectfully requests that the

United States International Trade Commission:
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institute an immediate investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff
Act 0f 1930, as amended, into the unlawful importation into the United
States, the sale for importation into the United States, and/or the sale
within the United States after importation by Chimei Innolux and others of
certain LCD devices, including monitors, televisions, and modules, and
components thereof, including LCD panels, LCD controllers, and
birefringent film, used in LCD devices that infringe one or more claims of

the United States patents-at-issue;
determine that there has been a violation of Section 337;

issue a limited exclusion order pursuant to Section 337(d) excluding from
entry into the United States all Accused Products manufactured, imported,
sold or sold for importation by or on behalf of Chimei Innolux, or any of
their affiliates, subsidiaries, other related business entities or their
successors or assigns that infringe one or more claims of the United States

patents-at-issue;

issue a permanent cease-and-desist order pursuant to Section 337(f)
prohibiting Chimei Innolux, their affiliates, subsidiaries, successors, or
assigns, from importing, selling, marketing, advertising, demonstrating,
distributing, offering for sale, or otherwise transferring, including the
movement or shipment of inventory, in the United States, and soliciting
U.S. agents or distributors for, any imported Accused Products that

infringe one or more claims of the United States patents-at-issue; and
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c.

issue such other and further relief as the Commission deems appropriate.
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VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT

I, Robert D. Shedd, am the Vice President of U.S. Patent Operations and am employed by

Thomson Licensing LLC. 1am duly authorized to sign this Complaint on behalf of Thomson
Licensing SAS and Thomson Licensing LLC. [ have read the Complaint and am aware of its
contents. Based on the knowledge, information, and beliéi; féfiﬁgci after én in(]uir)r':rea5£>ﬁa.ble
under the circumstances, Thomson Licensing SAS and Thomson Licensing LLC hereby certify,
in accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4(c)(1) through (3) and § 210.12(a), the following:

1. The Complaint is not being presented for any improper purpose, such as to harass
or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of the investigation or related
proceeding;

2. The claims and other legal contentions in the Complaint are warranted by existing
law or by a non-frivolous argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or
the establishment of new law; and

3. The allegations or other factual contentions in the Complaint have evidentiary
support or, if specifically so identified, are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable
opportunity for further investigation or discovery.

[ declare under oath and under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

>, T ,
Exccuted <6 of August 2010

J CofuT2

Robert D. Shedd
Vice President, U.S. Patent Operations
Thomson Licensing LLC

de-601709





